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Statutory Auditor’s Report on the Separate Financial Statements 

(Free translation from the Original in Spanish) 

To the Shareholders of Grupo Nutresa S. A.  

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Grupo Nutresa S. A., which comprise the 

separate statement of financial position as of December 31, 2025, and the separate statements of 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 

separate financial statements, including information on the material accounting policies and other 

explanatory information. 

In my opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements, truly taken from the books of account, 

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Grupo Nutresa S. A. as of December 31, 

2025, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 

Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards accepted in Colombia. 

Basis for the opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing accepted in Colombia. My 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Statutory Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Separate Financial Statements section of my report. 

I am independent of Grupo Nutresa S. A. in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional 

Accountants of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA) together with the ethical 

requirements applicable to my audit of the financial statements in Colombia, and I have fulfilled my other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code of Ethics. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 

opinion. 
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Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance in my 

audit of the separate financial statements of the year. These matters were addressed in the context of my 

audit of the separate financial statements as a whole and in forming my opinion thereon, and I do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in the audit 

Investments in subsidiaries  

As described in Note 3.1, investments in subsidiaries are 

initially recognized at cost and subsequently adjusted for 

changes in Grupo Nutresa’s ownership interest in the net 

assets of the subsidiaries after the acquisition date, less any 

impairment losses. As of December 31, 2025, as disclosed in 

Note 8 to the separate financial statements, investments in 

subsidiaries amounted to COP 7 trillion. 

Management performs an annual assessment of the 

recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which 

these investments are allocated in order to determine whether 

there are indicators of impairment. The determination of the 

recoverable amount involves complex calculations and requires 

significant judgment, particularly in estimating future cash flows 

and selecting key assumptions such as growth rates and 

discount rates. 

Future cash flows are inherently uncertain and may be affected 

by changes in macroeconomic conditions, competitive 

dynamics, and the regulatory environment in the various 

countries in which Grupo Nutresa operates. Due to the 

magnitude of the investments and the high degree of judgment 

involved in the impairment assessment, this matter was 

considered to be a key audit matter.   

I have performed audit procedures, in collaboration with 

valuation experts from PwC, on the process carried out by the 

Management of Grupo Nutresa to determine the recoverable 

amount of the cash-generating units to which the investments 

in subsidiaries are allocated. 

The procedures performed include: 

• Understanding meetings on the reasonableness of the 

financial model used by the Management of Grupo 

Nutresa S. A. to determine the recoverable value of the 

cash-generating units. 

• Evaluation of the reasonableness of the key assumptions 

used by Grupo Nutresa S. A., related to revenue growth 

rates, projected operating income and the discount rate. 

• Evaluation of the relevance of the discounted cash flow 

model used by Grupo Nutresa S. A. 

• Review of the mathematical integrity of the calculation and 

performance of sensitivity analyses on the relevant 

variables. 

Based on the procedures performed, the discussions and 

information obtained from the PwC experts, the analysis of the 

methodology and work of Grupo Nutresa, as well as the 

assumptions used by Grupo Nutresa, I concluded that such 

assumptions are appropriate and that the resulting estimates 

fall within a reasonable range. 

 

Other information 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the special report on 

the business group, legal provisions and evaluation on the performance of the information disclosure 

systems and control of financial information that I obtained prior to the date of this audit report, but is not 

included in the separate financial statements, nor in my reports as Statutory Auditor, nor the management 

report on which I express a conclusion below in the “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” 

section in accordance with the requirements defined in Article 38 of Law 222 of 1995. My opinion on the 
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separate financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of 

conclusion that provides a degree of assurance thereon. In connection with my audit of the separate 

financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the 

other information is materially inconsistent with the separate financial statements, or my knowledge obtained 

in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work I have performed, I 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I 

have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance of the Entity for the separate 

financial statements 

Management is responsible for the appropriate preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial 

statements in accordance with Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards accepted in Colombia, and for 

such internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of separate 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the separate financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appropriate, matters related to the going concern principle 

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Entity or 

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance of the Entity are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting 

process. 

Statutory auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the separate financial statements 

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a statutory auditor’s report 

that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing accepted in Colombia will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these separate financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing accepted in Colombia, I exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by Management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my statutory auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 

date of my statutory auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the separate financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions 

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with those charged with governance of the Entity regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that I identify during my audit. 
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I also provide those charged with governance of the Entity with a statement that I have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where applicable, related 

safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance of the Group, I have determined those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the separate financial statements of the current period 

and are therefore the key audit matters. I have described these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or 

regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, I 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of 

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

Management is also responsible for compliance with regulatory aspects in Colombia related to accounting 

document management, the preparation of management reports, and the timely and appropriate payment of 

contributions to the Colombian Comprehensive Social Security System and the implementation of the 

Comprehensive System for the Prevention and Control of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Risk. 

My responsibility as Statutory Auditor for those matters is to perform review procedures to issue a 

conclusion on their appropriate fulfilment. 

Accordingly, I conclude that: 

a) The Entity’s accounting records during the year ended December 31, 2025, have been kept in 

conformity with legal regulations and accounting technique, and transactions recorded conform to the 

Company’s bylaws and the decisions made by the General Shareholders’ Meeting and the Board of 

Directors. 

b) The correspondence, account vouchers, minute book, and share register are duly kept and 

safeguarded. 

c) There is consistency between the accompanying separate financial statements and the report prepared 

by Management. Management stated in such a report that it did not hinder the free circulation of 

invoices issued by vendors or suppliers. 



(Free translation from the Original in Spanish) 

PwC Contadores y Auditores S.A.S.,  

Calle 7 Sur No. 42-70, Torre 2, Piso 11, Edificio Forum, 

Medellín, Colombia.  Tel: (60-4) 6040606  www.pwc.com/co 

d) Information contained in self-assessment returns of contributions to the Colombian Comprehensive 

Social Security System, in particular that related to affiliates and their income base for calculation, has 

been taken from the accounting records and supports. As of December 31, 2025, the Entity is not in 

arrears for contributions to the Colombian Comprehensive Social Security System. 

e) The Entity has implemented the Comprehensive System for the Prevention and Control of Money 

Laundering and Terrorist Financing Risk in accordance with Part III of Title I of Chapter VII of the Basic 

Legal Circular issued by the Colombian Superintendency of Finance. 

In compliance with the Statutory Auditor’s responsibilities contained in Article 209 (1) and (3) of the 

Colombian Commercial Code, related to the assessment on whether the acts of Grupo Nutresa S. A.’s 

Management conform to the Company’s bylaws and the orders and instructions of the General 

Shareholders’ Meeting, and on whether there are in place appropriate internal control and custody and 

safekeeping measures of the Company’s assets or those of third parties in its possession and on the 

effectiveness of controls over the financial reporting process, I issued a separate report dated February 19, 

2026. 

Other matters 

The Entity’s separate financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, were audited by another 

Statutory Auditor, also a member of PwC Contadores y Auditores S. A. S., whose report dated February 10, 

2025, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.  

(Original in Spanish duly signed by:) 

Carlos A. Molina B. 

Statutory Auditor 

Colombian CPA Registration No. 129511-T  

Appointed by PwC Contadores y Auditores S. A. S. 

February 19, 2026 
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Certification of the Financial Statements 

 

The undersigned Legal Representative and the General Counsel of Grupo Nutresa S. A. 

 

WE CERTIFY: 

 

February 19th, 2026 

 

We have previously verified all claims, herewith contained, in the Financial Statements, as of December 31st, 2025 and 
2024, according to, the regulations, and the same that have been faithfully taken, from the Financial Statements of the 
Parent Company, and its subsidiaries, duly certified and audited.  

In accordance with the above stated, in relationship to the Financial Statements, herewith mentioned, we declare the 
following: 

1. The assets and liabilities, are stated and the recorded transactions, have been recorded, during said years. 

2. All realized economic transactions, have been recognized. 

3. The assets represent rights, and liabilities represent obligations, obtained or under the responsibility of the Companies. 

4. All elements have been recognized, in the appropriate amounts, and in accordance with the Financial Information 

Norms, applicable in Colombia. 

 

5. The economic transactions, that impact the Companies, have been correctly classified, described, and disclosed. 

6. The Financial Statements and Notes, do not contain misstatements, errors, differences or material inaccuracies, 

which could impact the financial position, equity, and operations of the Companies. Similarly, appropriate 

procedures, reporting systems, and control of the financial information, have been established, to insure accurate 

reporting to third–party users, of such. 

 

 

 

Andrés Bernal Correa    Jaime León Montoya Vásquez  

Vice President of Corporate Finance and Strategy  General Accountant - T.P. 45056-T 
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Certification of the Financial Statements Law 964 of 2005 

 

Dear 
Shareholders 
Grupo Nutresa S.A. 
Medellín 

 

The undersigned Legal Representative of Grupo Nutresa S.A. 

 

CERTIFIES: 

 

February 19th, 2026 

 

That the Financial Statements, and the operations of the Parent Company, and its subsidiaries, as of December 31, 2025 
and 2024, do not contain any defects, differences, inaccuracies, or errors that impede the knowledge of the true and fair 
presentation, of the financial situation, of the same. In addition, in accordance with the requirements of Circular 012 of 
2022 that the information contained in this report includes all material aspects of the business. 

The foregoing, is stated, for purposes of compliance with Article 46 of Law 964 of 2005 and to numeral 7.4.1.2.7 of circular 
012 of 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Andrés Bernal Correa  
Vice President of Corporate Finance and Strategy 
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Separate Statement of Financial Position 
As of December 31 (values expressed in millions of Colombian Pesos) 

 

Notes

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5  $ 21.802  $ 109

Trade and other receivables 6 80.597 21.569

Other assets 7 278 192

Total current assets  $ 102.677  $ 21.870

Non-current assets 

Trade and other receivables 6 58 64

Investments in subsidiaries 8 7.011.837 7.009.818

Investments in associates 9 -                              189.852

Equity investments measured at fair value 10 2.035 80.798

Property, plant and equipment, net 245 -                              

Deferred tax assets 11.4 1.697 -                              

Right-of-use assets -                              25

Other assets 7 -                              3

Total non-current assets  $ 7.015.872  $ 7.280.560

TOTAL ASSETS  $ 7.118.549  $ 7.302.430

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade payables and other payables 12 49.768 15.875

Income tax and taxes payable 11.2 3.046 4.339

Lease liabilities -                              29

Employee benefits liabilities 13 3.384 4.521

Total current liabilities  $ 56.198  $ 24.764

Non-current liabilities

Employee benefits liabilities 13 260 2.287

Deferred tax liabilities 11.4 -                              2.370

Other liabilities 3.002 -                              

Lease liabilities -                              1

Total non-current liabilities  $ 3.262  $ 4.658

TOTAL LIABILITIES  $ 59.460  $ 29.422

SHAREHOLDER EQUITY

Share capital issued  14.1 2.301 2.301

Paid-in-capital  14.1 117.170 117.170

Reserves 14.2 5.863.757 5.418.262

Retained earnings (1.284)                           (10.720)                        

Other comprehensive income,  accumulated 16 (166.133)                     995.553

Earnings for the period 1.243.278 750.442

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER EQUITY  $ 7.059.089  $ 7.273.008

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  $ 7.118.549  $ 7.302.430

December 2025 December 2024

 

 The notes are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements. 

 

 

 

 

Andrés Bernal Correa 
Vice President of 

Corporate Finance and Strategy 

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez 
General Accountant 

Professional Card No. 45056-T 

Carlos A. Molina Betancur 
Statutory Auditor– Professional Card No. 129511-T 

Designed by PwC Contadores y Auditores S.A.S. 
Original Signed in Spanish  
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Separate Comprehensive Income Statement 
From January 1st to December 31st (values expressed in millions of Colombian Pesos) 

Notes

Operating revenue         1.260.956            752.127 

Portfolio dividends 10 $                           296  $                           276 

Share of profit for the period of subsidiaries 8            1.092.918                 767.905 

Share of profit for the period of associates 9                 (11.940)                 (19.575)

Impairment of investments in associates 9                         (662)                                -   

Income from sale of investments in associates 15                 180.344                       3.521 

Gross profit  $         1.260.956   $             752.127 

Administrative expenses 17                 (21.751)                    (5.967)

Exchange differences on operating assets and liabilities 20                       1.627                           159 

Other operating income, net 18                    13.980                                 1 

Operating profit  $         1.254.812   $             746.320 

Financial income                       1.681                              30 

Financial expenses                         (848)                         (391)

Exchange differences on non-operating assets and liabilities 20                    (9.178)                                 6 

Income before tax  $         1.246.467   $             745.965 

Current income tax   11.3                    (5.969)                         (293)

Deferred income tax 11.3                       2.780                       4.770 

Net profit for the period  $         1.243.278   $             750.442 

Earnings per share  (*)

Basic, attributable to controlling interest (in Colombian pesos)           2.722,38           1.639,39 

(*) Calculated on 456.687.515 shares, (2024: 457.755.869 shares)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that are not subsequently reclassified to profit and loss of the period:

Equity investments measured at fair value 10                    (2.568)                    14.727 

Income tax from items that will not be reclassified 11.4                           899                    (5.777)

Total items that are not subsequently reclassified to profit and loss of the period  $               (1.669)   $                  8.950 

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss of the period:

Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries 8          (1.149.861)                 428.115 

Share of other comprehensive income of associates 9                    (1.370)                       3.588 

Withdrawal from sale in comprehensive income in investments in associates                           262                    (1.086)

Deferred tax of items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 11.4                           480                    (1.256)

Deferred tax of disposal of other comprehensive income of associates 11.4                            (92)                           380 

Total items that may subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss for the period:  $        (1.150.581)   $             429.741 

Other comprehensive income, net taxes  $        (1.152.250)   $             438.691 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD  $               91.028   $          1.189.133 

2025 2024

 

The notes are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements 

 

 

 

 

 

Andrés Bernal Correa 
Vice President of 

Corporate Finance and Strategy 

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez 
General Accountant 

Professional Card No. 45056-T 

Carlos A. Molina Betancur 
Statutory Auditor– Professional Card No. 129511-T 

Designed by PwC Contadores y Auditores S.A.S. 
Original Signed in Spanish  
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Separate Change in Equity Statement 
From January 1st to December 31st (values expressed in millions of Colombian Pesos) 
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Equity at December 31 of 2024        2.301    117.170    5.418.262        (10.720)       750.442         995.553      7.273.008 

Profit for the period                    -                      -                          -                           -       1.243.278                            -          1.243.278 

Other comprehensive income for the period  

(Note 16)
                   -                      -                          -                           -                          -        (1.152.250)      (1.152.250)

Comprehensive income for the period               -                 -                    -                    -      1.243.278     (1.152.250)            91.028 

Transfer to accumulated results (Note 14.3)                    -                      -                          -            750.442       (750.442)                            -                              -   

Appropriation of reserves (Note 14.3)                    -                      -           750.442        (750.442)                        -                              -                              -   

Shares buyback (Note 14.3)                    -                      -         (304.947)                         -                          -                              -            (304.947)

Realization of other comprehensive income 

(Note 16)
                   -                      -                          -                  9.436                        -                  (9.436)                            -   

Equity at December 31 of 2025        2.301    117.170    5.863.757          (1.284)    1.243.278        (166.133)      7.059.089 

Equity at December 31 of 2023        2.301    117.170    5.217.676                    3       720.588         546.139      6.603.877 

Profit for the period                    -                      -                          -                           -           750.442                            -               750.442 

Other comprehensive income for the period  

(Note 16)
                   -                      -                          -                           -                          -               438.691             438.691 

Comprehensive income for the period               -                 -                    -                    -         750.442         438.691      1.189.133 

Transfer to accumulated results (Note 14.3)                    -                      -                          -            720.588       (720.588)                            -                              -   

Declared dividends (Note 14.3)                    -                      -         (520.002)                         -                          -                              -            (520.002)

Appropriation of reserves (Note 14.3)                    -                      -           720.588        (720.588)                        -                              -                              -   

Realization of other comprehensive income 

(Note 16)
                   -                      -                          -             (10.723)                        -                  10.723                            -   

Equity at December 31 of 2024        2.301    117.170    5.418.262        (10.720)       750.442         995.553      7.273.008  

The notes are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements. 

 

 

 

 

Andrés Bernal Correa 
Vice President of 

Corporate Finance and Strategy 

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez 
General Accountant 

Professional Card No. 45056-T 

Carlos A. Molina Betancur 
Statutory Auditor– Professional Card No. 129511-T 

Designed by PwC Contadores y Auditores S.A.S. 
Original Signed in Spanish  
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Separate Cash-flow Statement 
From January 1st to December 31st (values expressed in millions of Colombian Pesos) 

Cash flow from operating activities

Dividends received  (Note 8 y 10)  $ 539.462                  $ 706.773                 

Dividends paid (Note 14.3) (137)                         (672.932)               

Payments to suppliers for goods and services (6.960)                     (6.606)                     

Income taxes (4.368)                     (1.295)                     

Other cash outflows (11.848)                  (30.363)                  

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities  $ 516.149              $ (4.423)                

Cash flow from investment activities

Sales of associates and joint ventures 336.660                 6.000                       

Divestment of equity investments measured at fair value (Note 10) 76.195                    -                            

Capitalization and/or purchase of share (Note 8) (509.646)               (1.600)                     

Purchase/sale of other equity instruments -                            (15.947)                  

Purchases of equity of associates and joint ventures  (Note 9) (85.480)                  -                            

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (249)                         -                            

Interest received 1.632                       13                              

Net cash flow used in investment activities (180.888)           (11.534)              

Cash flow from financing activities

Shares buyback (Note 14.3) (304.947)               -                            

Interest paid (17)                            (38)                             

Paid leases (17)                            (29)                             

Other cash outflows (575)                         (3)                                

Net cash flow used in financing activities (305.556)           (70)                      

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from operations 29.705               (16.027)              

Net foreign exchange differences (8.012)                     6                                 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 21.693               (16.021)              

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 109                           16.130                    

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 21.802               109                     

2025 2024

 

The notes are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements. 

 

 

 

 
Andrés Bernal Correa 

Vice President of 
Corporate Finance and Strategy 

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez 
General Accountant 

Professional Card No. 45056-T 

Carlos A. Molina Betancur 
Statutory Auditor– Professional Card No. 129511-T 

Designed by PwC Contadores y Auditores S.A.S. 
Original Signed in Spanish  
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Notes for the Separate Financial Statements  
 
For the period between January 1 and December 31, 2025, and 2024 
 (Values are expressed as millions of Colombian Pesos, except for the values in foreign currency, exchange rates, and number of shares). 

Note 1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

1.1 Entity and corporate purpose 

Grupo Nutresa S.A., (hereinafter referred to as Grupo Nutresa, the Company, or Nutresa, indistinctly), are a corporation of Colombian nationality, 
incorporated on April 12, 1920, with its headquarters in the City of Medellin, Colombia; its terms expire on April 12, 2050. The Corporate 
Business Purpose consists of the investment or application of available resources, in organized enterprises, under any of the forms permitted 
by law, whether domestic or foreign, and aimed at the use of any legal economic activity, either tangible or intangible assets, with the purpose 
of safeguarding its capital. 

The Parent Company is Grupo Nutresa constitutes an integrated and diversified group in the food industry operating mainly in Colombia and 
Latin America. 

The separate annual financial statements are the basis for the distribution of dividends and other appropriations by the shareholders. 
 

Note 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements of Grupo Nutresa for the period from January 1 to December 31, 2025, have been prepared in accordance with the 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards Accepted in Colombia for Group 1 preparers, which are based on the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), along with their interpretations, conceptual framework, basis for conclusions and the application guidelines 
authorized and issued  by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) included in the Regulatory Decree 2420 of 2015 and subsequent 
decrees that have amended and updated it, as well as other legal provisions defined by  control entities, which may differ in some aspects from 
those established by other State control bodies. 

2.1 Basis of measurement 

The Separate Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the measurements at fair value of certain financial 
instruments, as described in the accounting policies, herewith. The book value of recognized assets and liabilities, that have been designated as 
hedged items, in fair value hedges, and which would otherwise be accounted for at amortized cost and are adjusted to record changes in the 
fair value, attributable to those risks that are covered under “Effective hedges”. 

2.2 Functional and presentation currency 

The Separate Financial Statements are presented in Colombian Pesos, which is both the functional and presentation currency of Grupo Nutresa. 
These figures are expressed in millions of Colombian Pesos, except for basic earnings per share and the representative market exchange rates, 
which are expressed in Colombian Pesos, as well as, other currencies (e.g. USD, Euros, Pounds Sterling, etc), and which are expressed as monetary 
units. 

2.3 Classification of items as current and non-current 

Grupo Nutresa presents assets and liabilities, in the Statement of Financial Position, classified as current and non-current. An asset is classified 
as current, when the entity: expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume the asset within its normal operating cycle, holds the asset 
primarily, for negotiating purposes, expects to realize the asset within twelve months, after the reporting period is reported, or the asset is cash 
or cash equivalent, unless the asset is restricted for a period of twelve months, after the end of the reporting period.  All other assets are classified 
as non-current.  A liability is classified as current when the entity expects to settle the liability, within its normal operating cycle, or holds the 
liability primarily for negotiating purposes. 

2.4 Going Concern  

The Separate financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any adjustments to the carrying amounts 
and classification of reported assets, liabilities and expenses that might otherwise be required if the going concern basis were not appropriate. 

Note 3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Grupo Nutresa applies the following material accounting policies in the preparation of its financial statements: 

3.1 Investments in subsidiaries 

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by one of the companies that make up Grupo Nutresa Control exists when any of the Group companies has 
the power to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiary, which are generally: the operating activities and the financing to obtain benefits 
from its activities, and is exposed, or has rights, to those variable yields. 
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Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Separate Condensed Financial Statements of Grupo Nutresa, using the equity method, 
according to the established regulations in Colombia, under which the investment is initially recorded at cost, and is adjusted for changes in 
Grupo Nutresa’s share of the sussidiary’s net assets after the date of acquisition, less any impairment loss of the investment. The losses of the 
subsidiary, that exceed Grupo Nutresa’s interest in the investment, are recognized as provisions, only when it is probable that there will be an 
outflow of economic benefits and a legal or constructive obligation exists. 

3.2 Investments in associates and joint ventures 

An associate is an entity over which Grupo Nutresa has significant influence over financial and operating policies, without having control or 
joint control. 

A joint venture is an entity that Grupo Nutresa controls together with other participants in which there is a contractual agreement that 
establishes joint control over the relevant activities of the entity. 

At the date of acquisition, the excess acquisition cost, over the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities, 
assumed by the associate or joint venture, is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is included in the book value of the investment and is not 
amortized, nor is it individually tested for impairment. 

Investments in associates or joint ventures are measured in the Separate Financial Statements, using the equity method, under which the 
investment is initially recorded at cost, and is adjusted for changes in Grupo Nutresa’s share of the net assets of the associate or joint venture 
after the date of acquisition minus any impairment loss on the investment. The losses of the associate or joint venture, that exceed Grupo 
Nutresa’s shares in the investment, are recognized as a provision, only when it is probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits 
and there is a legal or implicit obligation. 

When the equity method is applicable, adjustments are made to homologize the accounting policies of the associate or joint venture with those 
of Grupo Nutresa  The portion that corresponds to Grupo Nutresa profits and losses resulting from the measurement of at fair value, at the date 
of acquisition, is incorporated into the Financial Statements, and gains and losses from transactions between Grupo Nutresa and the associate 
or joint venture, to the extent of Grupo Nutresa´s participation in the associate or joint venture. The equity method is applied from the date of 
the acquisition until the date of loss of significant influence or joint control over the entity. 

The share of profit and loss of an associate or joint venture, is presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, for the period, net of taxes 
and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture. The portion of changes, recognized directly in equity and other 
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture, is presented in the Statement of Changes in Equity and other comprehensive income. 
Cash dividends received, from the associate or joint ventures, are recognized by reducing the book value of the investment. 

Grupo Nutresa regularly analyzes the existence of impairment indicators and, if necessary, recognizes impairment losses of the associate or 
joint venture investment. Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss and are calculated as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the associate or joint venture, (which is the higher of the two values, between the value in use and its fair value minus cost to sell), 
and the book value. 

When the significant influence over an associate or joint control is lost, Grupo Nutresa measures and recognizes any retained residual 
investment, at fair value. The difference between the book amount of the associate or joint venture, (taking into account the relevant items of 
other comprehensive income) and the fair value of the retained residual investment at its value from sale is recognized in profit and loss for the 
period. 

3.3 Foreign currency 

Transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company are translated, using the exchange rate at the date 
of the transaction. Subsequently, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated, using the exchange rates at 
the closing date of the Financial Statements and taken from the information published by the official body responsible for certifying this 
information. Non-monetary items, that are measured at fair value, are translated, using the exchange rates at the date when their fair value is 
determined, and non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost, are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the original 
transaction. 

All exchange differences, arising on operating assets and liabilities are recognized on the Income Statement as part of income and operating 
expenses.  Exchange differences on other assets and liabilities are recognized as income or expense, except for, monetary items that provide an 
effective hedge, for a net investment in a foreign operation, and from investments in shares classified as fair value through equity. These items 
and their tax effects are recognized in “Other comprehensive income” until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognized 
in profit and loss. 

3.4 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, in the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cash Flows, include cash on hand and in banks, highly liquid 
investments readily convertible to a known amount of cash, and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in its value, with a maturity of three 
months or less from the date of acquisition. These items are initially recognized at historical cost and subsequently adjusted to recognize their 
fair value at the date of each accounting year. 

3.5 Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and, simultaneously, to a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, plus (minus) the transaction costs directly 

attributable, except for those that are subsequently measured at fair value. 
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At initial recognition, Grupo Nutresa classifies its financial assets for subsequent measurement, at amortized cost or fair value, depending on 

Grupo Nutresa’s business model for managing financial assets, and the characteristics of the contractual cash flows of the instrument; or as 

derivatives designated as hedging instruments, in an effective hedge, accordingly. 

(i) Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate, if the asset is held within a business model whose 

objective is to maintain the contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the same grants at specific dates, cash flows that are solely for 

payments of principal and interest, on the value of outstanding capital. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any estimate of 

expected and recognized credit losses.  Income from interest of these financial assets is included in "interest and similar income", using the 

effective interest rate method.  

Grupo Nutresa has determined that the business model for accounts receivables is to receive the contractual cash flows, and therefore they are 

included in this category, the Group evaluates whether the cash flows of the financial instruments represent only capital and interest payments. 

In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic loan agreement.  This means 

that the interest includes only the consideration for the value of money over time, credit risk, other basic credit risks, and a profit margin 

consistent with a basic loan agreement. If the contractual terms involve risk or volatility exposure and are inconsistent with a basic loan 

agreement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value, through profit or loss. 

(ii) Financial assets measured at fair value with changes in other comprehensive income 

The financial assets, held to collect the contractual cash flows and sell the assets, where the cash flows of the assets represent only payments 

of principal and interest, and which are not designated at fair value, through profit or loss, are measured at fair value with changes in other 

comprehensive income. 

For investments in equity instruments, that are not held for trading purposes, Grupo Nutresa chooses to irrevocably present gains or losses, 

from fair value measurement, in other comprehensive income. Upon disposal of investments, at fair value, through other comprehensive 

income, the cumulative value of gains or losses is transferred directly to retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends 

received in cash, from these investments, are recognized in profit or loss for the period. 

The fair values of share price investments are based on the valid quoted prices. If the market for a financial instrument is not active (or the 

instrument is not quoted on a stock exchange), the Group establishes its fair value using valuation techniques. These techniques include the use 

of the values observed in recent transactions, realized under the terms of free competition, reference to other instruments that are substantially 

similar, analyses of discounted cash flows, and option models, making maximum use of market information, and relying as little as possible on 

internal company information. 

(iii) Financial assets measured at fair value 

The financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, are subsequently 

measured at fair value, with changes recognized in profit and loss. A loss or gain on a debt instrument, that is subsequently measured at fair 

value, through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship, is recognized in the Income Statement, for the period in which it arises, 

unless it arises from instruments of debt that were designated at fair value, or that are not held for trading. 

(iv) Impairment of financial assets at amortized cost 

The Group evaluates on a prospective basis the expected credit losses associated with the debt instruments, recorded at amortized cost and at 
fair value, through changes in other comprehensive income, as well as with the exposures arising from loan commitments and financial 
guarantee contracts. The Group recognizes a provision for losses, at each reporting date. The measurement of the expected credit losses 
reflects: 

• An unbiased and weighted probability measure determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;  

• The value of money in time; and  
• Reasonable and supported information, available without incurring undue costs or efforts, on the filing date, about past events, current 

conditions, and future economic condition forecasts. 

(v) Derecognition 

A financial asset, or a part of it, is derecognized, from the Statement of Financial Position, when it is sold, transferred, expires, or Grupo Nutresa 

loses control over the contractual rights or the cash flows of the instrument. A financial liability, or part of it, is derecognized from the Statement 

of Financial Position when the contractual obligation is settled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another, from the 

same counterparty, on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability, and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference, in the respective 

book value, is recognized in the Comprehensive Income Statement. 

(vi) Modification 

In some circumstances, the renegotiation, or modification of the contractual cash flows, of a financial asset, may result in the derecognition of 

an existing financial asset. If the modification of a financial asset results in the derecognition of an existing financial asset, and the subsequent 

recognition of a modified financial asset, it is considered a new financial asset.  Accordingly, the date of the modification is treated as the date 

of initial recognition, of that financial asset. 
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(vii) Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate. Financial liabilities include balances with 

suppliers and accounts payable, financial obligations, and other derivative financial liabilities. This category also includes those derivative 

financial instruments, taken by the Group, that are not designated as hedging instruments, in effective hedging. 

Financial obligations are classified as such, for obligations that are obtained by resources, be it from credit institutions or other financial 
institutions, in the country or abroad. 

Financial liabilities are written-off in the accounts when they are discharged, that is when the obligation specified in the contract is met, 
cancelled, or expires. 

(viii) Off-setting financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, so that the net value is reported on the Statement of Financial Position of the Separate, only 
when (i) there is, at present, a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts recognized, and (ii) there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or 
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities, simultaneously. 

3.6 Taxes 

This heading includes the value of mandatory general-nature taxation in favor of the State, by way of private closeouts, that are based on the 
taxes of the fiscal year, and the responsibility of each company, according to the tax norms of the national and territorial governing entities, in 
the countries where Grupo Nutresa operate. 

a) Income tax  

(i) Current 

Current assets and liabilities, generated from the income tax, for the period, are measured by the values expected to be recovered or paid to the 
taxation authorities. Income tax expense is recognized under the current tax, in accordance with the tax clearance, between taxable incomes 
and accounting profit and loss, impacted by the rate of income tax in the current year, in accordance with the effective tax rules in each country. 
Tax rates and tax norms or laws used to compute these values are those that are approved by the end of the reporting period, over which it is 
reported. Current assets and liabilities, from income tax are offset when they relate to the same Fiscal Authority, and the intention is to settle 
for a net value or to realize the asset, and settle the liability, simultaneously.  

(Ii) Deferred 

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method and is calculated on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities in and book value. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all temporary tax differences imposed, and all of the deferred 
tax assets are recognized, for all temporary deductible differences, future compensation of tax credits, and unused tax losses, to the extent that 
it is likely there will be availability of future tax profit, against which, they can be attributed. Deferred taxes are not subject to financial discount. 

Deferred asset and liability taxes are not recognized, if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, in a 
transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and 
loss; and in the case of deferred tax liability, arising from the initial recognition of goodwill. 

The deferred tax liabilities relating to investments in associates, and interests in joint ventures, are not recognized when the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled, and it is probable that said differences will not reverse in the near future, and the 
deferred tax assets related to investments in associates, and interests in joint ventures are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that 
the temporary differences will reverse in the near future, and it is likely the availability of future tax profit, against which these deductible 
differences, will be charged. Deferred tax liabilities, relating to goodwill, are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary 
differences will be reversed in the future. 

The book value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available for use, in part or in totality, or a part of the asset, from said tax. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed 
at each reporting date and are recognized, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit income is likely to allow for their recovery. 

Assets and liabilities from deferred taxes are measured at the tax rates, that are expected to be applicable, in the period when the asset is 
realized, or the liability is settled, based on income tax rates and norms, that were approved at the date of filing, or whose approval will be 
nearing completion, by that date. 

The deferred tax is recognized in profit and loss, except that one related to items recognized outside profit and loss, in these cases it will be 
presented directly in other comprehensive income (OCI). 

3.7 Employee benefits 

a) Short-term benefits 

They are, (other than termination benefits), benefits expected to be settled in its totality, before the end of the following twelve months (12), at 
the end of the annual period, of which the services rendered, by employees, is reported. Short-term benefits are recognized to the extent that 
the employee renders the service, to the expected value to be paid. 

b) Other long-term benefits 

Long-term employee benefits, (that differ from post-employment benefits and termination benefits), that do not expire within twelve (12) 
months, after the end of the annual period in which the employee renders services, are remunerated, such as long-term benefits, the variable 
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compensation system, and retroactive severance interest. The cost of long-term benefits is distributed over the time measured between the 
employee starting date, and the expected date of when the benefit is received. These benefits are projected to the payment date and are 
discounted with the projected unit credit method. 

c) Pensions and other post-employment benefits 

(i) Defined benefit plans 

Defined benefit plans are plans for post-employment benefits, in which Grupo Nutresa has a legal or implicit obligation to pay benefits. 

The cost of these benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method. The liability is measured annually at the present value of the 
expected future payments required to settle the obligations, arising from the services rendered by employees, in the current period and prior 
periods. 

Updates of the liability for actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Financial Position, against retained earnings through 
“Other comprehensive income”. These items will not be reclassified to profit and loss, in subsequent periods. The cost of past and present 
services, and net interest on the liability, are recognized in profit and loss, distributed among cost of sales and administrative expenses, sales 
and distribution, likewise as are gains and losses by reductions in benefits and non-routine settlements. 

Interest on the liability is calculated by applying the discount rate to the liability. 

3.8 Provisions, contingent liabilities and assets 

a) Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or implicit obligation to a settlement that will 
require an outflow of resources, are considered probable, and can be resonably estimated.  

In cases where Grupo Nutresa expects the provision to be reimbursed for all or part of the provision, the reimbursement is recognized as a 
separate asset only when such reimbursement is virtually certain. 

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the disbursement of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation. The expense 
relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, net of any reimbursement. The increase in the provision, due 
to the passage of time, is recognized as interest expense. 

b) Contingent liabilities 

Possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of Grupo Nutresa, or present obligations arising from past events, are not likely, but where 
it is possible that an outflow of resources including economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, are not recognized in the Statement of Financial Position and are, instead, revealed as contingent 
liabilities. 

c) Contingent assets 

Possible assets, arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence, or possibly by the non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events, which are not entirely under the control of Grupo Nutresa, are not recognized in the Statement of Financial 
Position, and are however, disclosed as contingent assets when it is a probable occurrence. When the contingency is certain, the asset and the 
related income are recognized for that period. 

3.9 Revenue 

a) Dividend income 

This is recognized when Grupo Nutresa’s right to receive payment is established, which is generally when the Shareholders approve the dividend, 
except when the dividend represents a recovery of investment costs. Dividend income is not recognized, when payment is made to all 
Shareholders, in the same proportion in shares of the issuer. 

b) The Equity Method 

Under this method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, and is adjusted for changes in Grupo Nutresa's share of the net assets of 
subsidiaries and associates, after the acquisition date, and less any impairment loss on the investment. 

c) Interest 

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income, or expense, is recognized using the effective interest rate. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments, or those received through the expected life of the 
financial instrument, or in a shorter period, in the net book value of the financial asset or financial liability. 

3.10 Fair value 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction, between market participants, 
at the measurement date. The fair value of all financial assets and liabilities is determined at the date of presentation of the Financial 
Statements, for recognition or disclosure in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Grupo Nutresa uses valuation techniques which are appropriate in circumstances where sufficient information is available to measure the fair 
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 
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Fair value is determined: 

• Based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at the measurement date (Level 1). 

• Based on valuation techniques commonly used by market participants using variables other than the quoted prices that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (Level 2). 

• Based on internal discounted cash flow techniques or other valuation models, using estimated variables by Grupo Nutresa for the unobservable 
asset or liability, in the absence of variables observed in the market (Level 3). 

Judgments include data such as liquidity risk, credit risk, and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported 
fair value of financial instruments. 

3.11 Related Parties  

Grupo Nutresa permanently evaluates its related parties and applies the following criteria for their identification, taken from IAS 24-Related 
Party Disclosures: 

1) A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Grupo Nutresa. 
a) A person, or a close relative of that person, is related to Grupo Nutresa if that person: 

(i) exercises control or joint control over Grupo Nutresa; 
ii) exercises significant influence over Grupo Nutresa; or 
iii) is a member of Grupo Nutresa’s key management personnel. 

(b) An entity is related to Grupo Nutresa if one of the following conditions applies to it: 
(i) The entity and Grupo Nutresa are members of the same group. 
(ii) An entity is an associate or a joint venture of the other entity. 
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. 
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third party and the other entity is an associate of the third party. 
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a). 
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel 
of the entity. 
(viii) The entity or any member of a group to which it belongs, provides key management personnel services to Grupo 
Nutresa. 

2) Close relatives of a person are those family members who could be expected to influence, or be influenced by that person in their relationship 
with the Grupo Nutresa and include: 

(a) the children of such person and the spouse or person with similar affective relationship; 
(b) the children of suchperson's spouse or person with analogous affective relationship; and  
(c) dependents of such person, or the spouse of that person or person with similar affective relationship. 

3) Key management personnel are those persons who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the Company's 
activities, directly or indirectly, including any director or administrator (executive or non-executive) of Grupo Nutresa. 

Grupo Nutresa considers the following cases in its analysis, which are not considered related parties: 

(a) Two entities by virtue of the mere fact that they share a director or administrator or other member of the key management 
personnel or because a member of the key management personnel of one entity has significant influence over the other entity. 
(b) Two participants in a joint venture solely because they have joint control over the joint venture. 
(c) (i) finance providers; (ii) trade unions; (iii) public utility entities; and (iv) departments and agencies of a government that does not 
control, jointly control or significantly influence the reporting entity. Simply by virtue of their normal relationships with the entity 
(even though they may affect an entity's freedom of action or participation in its decision-making process). 
(d) A customer, supplier, franchisor, distributor or exclusive agent with whom an entity transacts a significant volume of business 
simply by virtue of the resulting economic dependence. 

3.12 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders, by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 

The average number of shares outstanding, for the periods ended December 31st, 2025 was 456,687,515 and December 31st, 2024 was 

457,755,869. 

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting, profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders, and the weighted average number 
of shares of dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

3.13 Relative importance or materiality 

Information is material if its omission, inaccuracy or concealment can reasonably influence the economic decisions taken by primary users of 
generalpurpose financial statements, based on these, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity. Materiality or 
relative importance depends on nature or size of the information. The entity assesses whether the information individually or collectively is 
material or has relative importance in the context of its financial statements taken as a whole. 
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3.14 Changes in accounting policies 

3.14.1 New regulations incorporated into the accounting framework accepted in Colombia, mandatory as of 
January 1, 2027. 

The Decree 1271 of 2024 added Technical Annex 01 of 2024 of Group 1 to the annexes incorporated in Decree 2420 of 2015, which includes 
the International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts. 

3.14.1.1  IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of insurance contracts issued. 
It also requires similar principles to be applied to reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts with discretionary participation features. 
The objective is to ensure entities provide relevant information that faithfully represents these contracts to assess the effect of the contracts 
within the scope of IFRS 17 on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity. 

IFRS 17 derogates IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, which was an interim standard allowing entities to use a wide variety of accounting practices for 
insurance contracts, reflecting national accounting requirements and variations thereof. Some previous accounting practices allowed under 
IFRS 4 did not adequately reflect the true underlying financial position or financial performance of insurance contracts. 

Article 2 of Decree 1271 of 2024 added Article 1.1.4.1.4 to Decree 2420 of 2015, including simplifications for the implementation of the 
International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts that must be applied by financial information preparers in Group 1 under 
the supervision of the Financial Superintendence of Colombia 

The management is currently assessing the detailed implications of applying the new standard to the separate financial statements 

3.14.2 New regulations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) not yet incorporated into 
the accounting framework accepted in Colombia. 

3.14.2.1  Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture: Amendments to IFRS 
10 and IAS 28 

The IASB has made limited-scope amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures. 

In December 2015, the IASB decided to postpone the effective date of this amendment until it concludes its research project on the equity 
method standard. 

3.14.2.2  International Tax Reform – Pillar Two Model Rules    

In May 2023, the IASB introduced limited-scope amendments to IAS 12 that provide temporary relief from the requirement to recognize and 
disclose deferred taxes arising from tax laws enacted or substantively enacted that the Pillar Two model rules implement. This includes tax laws 
implementing qualified domestic minimum top-up taxes described in the rules. 

3.14.2.3  IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Financing Arrangements    

These amendments require disclosures to enhance transparency regarding supplier financing arrangements and their impact on liabilities, cash 
flows, and an entity’s liquidity risk exposure. The disclosure requirements are the IABS response to investor concerns that supplier financing 
arrangements are not sufficiently visible in some entities, complicating investor analysis. 

3.14.2.4  IFRS 16 – Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback  

These amendments introduce requirements in IFRS 16 for sale and leaseback transactions, clarifying how an entity accounts for a sale and 
leaseback after the transaction date. Sale and leaseback transactions where some or all lease payments are variable and not based on an index 
or rate are more likely to be affected.  

3.14.2.5  Amendments to IAS 21 – Lack of Exchangeability 

In August 2023, the IASB amended IAS 21 to assist entities in determining whether a currency is exchangeable into another and which spot 
exchange rate to use when it is not. 

3.14.2.6  Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments – Amendments to IFRS 9 and 
IFRS 7 

On May 30, 2024, the IASB issued specific amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 to address recent questions arising from practical issues and 
introduce new requirements, not only for financial institutions but also for corporate entities. 

3.14.2.7  IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 

IFRS 18 will replace IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, introducing new requirements to enhance comparability of financial 
performance among similar entities and provide users with more relevant information and greater transparency. While IFRS 18 will not impact 
the recognition or measurement of items in the financial statements, its effects on presentation and disclosure are expected to be extensive, 
particularly for the statement of financial performance and management-defined performance measures within the financial statements. 
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3.14.2.8  IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability 

Issued in May 2024, IFRS 19 allows certain eligible subsidiaries of parent entities reporting under IFRS Accounting Standards to apply reduced 

disclosure requirements. 

3.14.2.9 Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 — Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments  

These amendments:  

• Clarify the requirements regarding the timing of recognition and derecognition of certain financial assets and liabilities, introducing 
a new exception for specific financial liabilities settled through an electronic cash transfer system.  

• Clarify and provide additional guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets the 'solely payments of principal and interest' 
(SPPI) criterion.  

• Incorporate new disclosure requirements for certain instruments with contractual terms that may change cash flows (such as 
instruments with features linked to the achievement of environmental, social, and governance – ESG targets).  

• Update disclosures for equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).  

3.14.2.10 Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11  

Annual improvements are limited to changes that clarify the wording in an Accounting Standard or correct relatively minor unintended 
consequences, omissions, or conflicts between the requirements of the Standards. The 2024 amendments apply to the following standards:  

• IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards;  

• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and its accompanying Implementation Guidance;  

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments;  

• IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements; and  

• IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.  

3.14.2.11 IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 — Contracts for Renewable Electricity  

These amendments modify the 'own-use' and hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 and include specific disclosure requirements in IFRS 7. 
They apply solely to contracts that expose the entity to variability in the underlying quantity of electricity because the generation source 
depends on uncontrollable natural conditions (such as the weather). These are described as 'nature-dependent electricity contracts'.  

3.14.2.12  IAS 21 — Translation to a Hyperinflationary Presentation Currency  

These narrow-scope amendments specify the translation procedures for an entity whose presentation currency corresponds to a 
hyperinflationary economy. An entity applies the amendments if:  

• Its functional currency corresponds to a non-hyperinflationary economy, and it is translating its results and financial position into the 
currency of a hyperinflationary economy; or  

• It is translating into the currency of a hyperinflationary economy the results and financial position of a foreign operation whose 
functional currency corresponds to a non-hyperinflationary economy.  

The objective of the amendments is to improve the usefulness of the resulting information in a cost-effective manner. Developed in response 
to stakeholder feedback, they are expected to reduce diversity in practice and provide a clearer basis for reporting in a hyperinflationary 
currency. 

3.14.3 New standards issued by the International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB) not yet incorporated into 
the accounting framework accepted in Colombia 

3.14.2.1  IFRS S1 - General Requirements for Sustainability-Related Financial Disclosures 

This standard establishes the core framework for disclosing material information on sustainability-related risks and opportunities across an 

entity’s value chain. 

3.14.2.2  IFRS S2 - Climate-Related Disclosures 

This is the first thematic standard issued, establishing requirements for entities to disclose information about climate-related risks and 
opportunities. 

Note 4. JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ASSUMPTIONS 

The preparation of Grupo Nutresa’s Financial Statements requires that management must make judgments, accounting estimates, and 
assumptions that impact the amount of revenue and expenses, assets and liabilities, and related disclosures, as well as, the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities, at the close of the reporting period. In this regard, the uncertainty of assumptions and estimates could impact future 
results that could require significant adjustments to the carrying amounts recorded in books of the assets or liabilities impacted. 
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In applying Grupo Nutresa’s accounting policies, Management has made the following judgments and estimates, which have significant impact 
on the amounts recognized in these Separate Financial Statements: 

• Assessment of the existence of impairment indicators, for assets. 
• Assumptions used in the actuarial calculation of post-employment and long-term obligations with employees. 
• Suppositions used to calculate the fair value of financial instruments 
• Recoverability of deferred tax assets. 
• Determination of control, significant influence, or joint control over an investment. 
 

Note 5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents include the following: 

2025 2024

 Cash and banks                     21.745                            104 

 Short-term investments                               57                                  5 

 Total               21.802                     109  
Table 3 

Short-term collocations are realized for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements 
of the Group and accrue interest at market rates of the respective short-term collocations. Balances with banks accrue interest at variable rates 
based on the return daily bank deposit rates. The average returns on cash and cash equivalents, in all currencies, 2,23% (2024: 1,1%). 

There are no restrictions on the liquidity of the securities 

Note 6. TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES. NET 

The balance of trade receivables and other accounts receivable comprised the following items: 

2025 2024

Accounts receivable from employees 13                      24                      

Other accounts receivable, related parties⁽¹⁾ 60.713            21.533            

Other accounts receivable ⁽²⁾ 19.929            76                      

Total trade and accounts receivable 80.655         21.633         

Current portion 80.597         21.569         

Non-current portion 58                 64                 

Table 4 

(1) The accounts receivable from related parties are mainly from Servicios Nutresa S.A.S. 

(2) Corresponds to the balance receivable from the sale of investments in associates. 

Note 7. OTHER ASSETS 

Other assets are comprised of the following: 

Notes 2025 2024

Taxes 11.2 278                       152                   

Prepaid expenses (*) -                             40                      

Total other current assets 278                 192              

Prepaid expenses (*) -                             3                         

Total other non-current assets -                      3                   

Total other assets 278                 195              

Table 5 

(*) The prepaid expenses relate mainly to services. 
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Note 8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 

The following represents the book values of the subsidiaries, of Grupo Nutresa, to the date of the period, over which is reported: 

% participation 2025 2024

Compañía de Galletas Noel S.A.S. 100% 2.121.660          2.324.994

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S. A. S. 100% 1.349.494          1.359.635

Tropical Coffee Company S.A.S. in liquidation 100% -                               18.035

Industria Colombiana de Café S.A.S. 100% 586.470              649.805

Industria de Alimentos Zenú S.A.S. 100% 161.703              190.820

Inverlogy S. A. S. 100% 25.339                 24.802

Meals Mercadeo de Alimentos de Colombia S.A.S. 100% 304.243              317.201

Molinos Santa Marta S.A.S. 100% 84.919                 74.657

Novaventa S.A.S. 93% 66.219                 104.083

Pastas Comarrico S.A.S. 100% 15.991                 15.796

Productos Alimenticios Doria S.A.S. 100% 85.295                 113.751

Alimentos Cárnicos S.A.S. 100% 1.089.907          1.228.623

Setas Colombianas S.A. 94% 58.025                 55.141

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates Perú S.A. 0,003% 13                            13

La Recetta Soluciones Gastronómicas Integradas S.A.S. 100% 5.891                    1.455

Gestión Cargo Zona Franca S.A.S. 83% 176.100              190.897

Comercial Nutresa S.A.S. 100% 39.287                 75.041

Industrias Aliadas S.A. 83% 42.333                 56.971

Opperar Colombia S.A.S. 100% 3.845                    3.420

Servicios Nutresa S. A. S. 100% 37.800                 26.692

Productos Naturela S.A.S. 60% 4.449                    3.936

Atlantic F. S. S.A.S. 100% 256.282              171.870

Abimar Foods Inc. 37,39% 304.851              -                  
Helados Bon S. A. 18,82% 111.777              -                  
Inversionista Alcora S. A. 12,74% 79.944                 -                  
C.I. Nutrading  S.A.S. in liquidation 74,69% (2024 - 100%) -                               2.180

Subtotal 7.011.837 7.009.818

Book value

 
Table 6 

A detailed breakdown of the dividends received, and the result of the application of the Equity Method, on investments in subsidiaries, during 
the reporting periods, is as follows: 
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Dividend 

Income

Share of 

Profit and 

Loss for the 

Period

Share of 

Other 

Comprehensiv

e Income

Capitalizat

ions
Impairment

Dividend 

Income

Share of 

Profit and 

Loss for the 

Period

Share of 

Other 

Comprehensiv

e Income

Capitalizati

ons

 Compañía de Galletas Noel S.A.S.                          -              219.632            (422.966)                      -                       -            (16.779)             165.350             239.756                         - 

 Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S. A. S.         (150.001)              332.282            (192.422)                      -                       -                         -                62.069             140.964                         - 

 Tropical Coffee Company S.A.S. in liquidation                          -               (18.720)                     (116)                      -               (801)                  (900)                       (43)                         74                         - 

 Industria Colombiana de Café S.A.S.            (18.274)                 87.366            (132.427)                      -                       -            (79.124)                99.839                   5.046                         - 

 Industria de Alimentos Zenú S.A.S.            (19.020)                 23.262              (33.359)                      -                       -            (30.178)                19.447                   2.454                         - 

 Inverlogy S. A. S.                          -                       537                            -                      -                       -                         -                      606                            -                         - 

 Meals Mercadeo de Alimentos de Colombia S.A.S.            (14.077)                 57.987              (56.868)                      -                       -              (4.995)                33.076                   6.388                         - 

 Molinos Santa Marta S.A.S.                          -                 10.255                            7                      -                       -            (47.597)                14.035                            1                         - 

 Novaventa S.A.S.            (69.546)                 58.977              (27.295)                      -                       -         (167.206)                70.620                      297                         - 

 Pastas Comarrico S.A.S.                          -                       195                            -                      -                       -              (3.200)                      482                            -                         - 

 Productos Alimenticios Doria S.A.S.            (25.601)                 40.055              (42.910)                      -                       -            (61.428)                32.357                   6.948                         - 

 Alimentos Cárnicos S.A.S.         (127.910)              162.739            (173.545)                      -                       -            (49.742)             174.181                24.019                         - 

 Setas Colombianas S.A.               (5.397)                   8.281                            -                      -                       -              (6.712)                   7.196                            -                         - 

 Compañía Nacional de Chocolates Perú S.A.                        (1)                            2                          (1)                      -                       -                         -                            1                            1                         - 

 La Recetta Soluciones Gastronómicas Integradas S.A.S.                          -                   3.648                            -                788                       -                         -                      360                            -                         - 

 Gestión Cargo Zona Franca S.A.S.            (29.878)                 15.081                            -                      -                       -            (99.169)                 (6.816)                            -                         - 

 Comercial Nutresa S.A.S.            (64.001)                 57.102              (28.855)                      -                       -         (113.073)                64.386                         95                         - 

 Industrias Aliadas S.A.            (15.358)                       703                         17                      -                       -            (26.265)                17.187                            4                         - 

 Opperar Colombia S.A.S.                          -                       425                            -                      -                       -                         -                      396                            -                         - 

 Servicios Nutresa S. A. S.                          -                 11.259                     (151)                      -                       -                         -                   7.243                      165                         - 

 Productos Naturela S.A.S.                   (102)                       615                            -                      -                       -                  (131)                      143                            -                         - 

 Atlantic F. S. S.A.S.                          -                 13.980                         13          70.419                       -                         -                   7.336                   1.903                         - 

 Abimar Foods Inc.                          -                   4.697              (29.298)       329.452                       -                         -                            -                            -                         - 

 Helados Bon S. A.                          -                   4.411                 (1.621)       108.987                       -                         -                            -                            -                         - 

 Inversionista Alcora S. A.                           -                   2.528                 (8.064)          85.480                       -                         -                            -                            -                         - 

 C.I. Nutrading  S.A.S. in liquidation                          -                  (4.381)                            -                      -            (2.201)                         -                 (1.546)                            -                1.600 

 Total        (539.166)          1.092.918       (1.149.861)       595.126           (3.002)        (706.499)             767.905             428.115               1.600 

2025

 Accumulated to December 

2024

 
Table 7 

 
During 2025, Grupo Nutresa carried out a capitalization of Abimar Foods Inc, resulting in a 37.39% ownership, and acquired minority interests: 
30% of Recetta Soluciones Gastronómicas Integradas S.A.S. and 30% of Atlantic FS S.A.S. It acquired 18.32% of Helados Bon S.A. and 12.74% 
of Inversionista Alcora S.A. In 2024 capitalizations was made to C.I Nutrading S.A.S $1.600 
An impairment is made for the investment in Tropical Coffee Company S.A.S. and C.I Nutrading S. A. S. because the companies are in 

liquidation. 

The dividends received in subsidiaries are recognized as the lesser value of the investment, as part of the application of the equity method. 

Dividends received from subsidiaries generate an impact on cash flow for $539.166 (2024: $706.499). 

Note 9. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 

The following is a breakdown of the investments over which Grupo Nutresa has significant influence, and which are classified as associates: 

Country  % participation 

 Associates 

Bimbo de Colombia S.A.  Colombia 0% (2024 - 40%) -                             167.907         

Estrella Andina S.A.S.  Colombia 0% (2024 - 30%) -                             21.261            

Wellness Food Company S.A.S.  Colombia 23,3% -                             684                   

Inversionista Alcora S. A. Panamá 0,0% -                             -                          

 Total associates -                      189.852       

 Book Value 

2025 2024

 
Table 8 
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 Share of 

Profit and Loss 

for the Period 

 Share of Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

 Impairment  Capitalization 

 Disposal by 

sale and/or 

Transfer 

 Share of Profit 

and Loss for 

the Period 

 Share of Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

 Associates 

Bimbo de Colombia S.A. (11.196)              (1.370)                   -                               -                               (155.341)             (20.015)               3.855                    

Estrella Andina S.A.S. (722)                      -                               -                               -                               (20.539)                265                        -                               

Wellness Food Company S.A.S. (22)                         -                               (662)                       -                               -                               (36)                         -                               

Internacional Ejecutiva de Aviación S.A.S. -                              -                               -                               -                               -                               211                        (267)                       

Inversionista Alcora S. A. -                              -                               -                               85.480                 (85.480)                -                              -                               

 Total associates (11.940)           (1.370)              (662)                 85.480             (261.360)          (19.575)           3.588               

 Accumulated to December 

2025 2024

 
 Table 9 

Bimbo de Colombia S.A. 

Bimbo de Colombia S.A. is a company domiciled in Tenjo, Colombia, and is dedicated primarily, to the manufacturing of baked goods, it was sold 
in 2025.   

Estrella Andina S.A.S. 

Estrella Andina S.A.S. is a simplified joint stock company, engaged in the marketing of ready-made meals in the cafeterias, in which Nutresa has 
a 30% stake, having as its majority Shareholder, Grupo Alsea, with an interest of 70%. It was sold in 2025. 

Wellness Food Company S. A. S. In liquidation. 
It is a simplified joint-stock company dedicated to the production of dairy products and other types of prepared foods n.c.p. in which Nutresa 
has a 23,33% participation. 

Internacional Ejecutiva de Aviación S. A. S. 
It is a simplified joint stock company, domiciled in Medellín dedicated to national passenger air transport, in which Nutresa has a 25% stake 
during 2023 and was sold in 2024. 

The movements of investments in associates are as follows: 

2025 2024

 Opening balance at January 1 189.852            209.405            

 Sale of investment ⁽¹⁾ (175.880)              (3.566)                    

 Increased in capital ⁽²⁾ 85.480                   -                                 

 Transfer to investmets in subsidiaries ⁽³⁾ (85.480)                 -                                 

 Impairment ⁽⁴⁾ (662)                        -                                 

 Share of profit and loss for the period (11.940)                 (19.575)                 

 Share of other comprehensive income (1.370)                    3.588                      

Balance at December 31 -                         189.852            
 

Table 10 

Increase in contributions in associates and joint ventures 

(1) In May 2025, Bimbo de Colombia S.A. and Estrella Andina S.A.S. were sold, and in April 2024, Internacional Ejecutiva de Aviación S.A.S. was 
sold. 

(2) In April 2025, Inversiones Alcora S.A. was acquired,  

(3) In October 2025, Inversiones Alcora S.A. was reclassified from associate to a subsidiary. 

(4) An impairment has been recognized for the investment in Wellness Food Company S.A.S. as the company is in currently liquidation. 

During the period covered by these Financial Statements, no dividends were received from these investments. 

None of the associates and joint ventures, held by the Group are listed on a stock market, and consequently, there are no quoted market prices 
for the investment. 

Below, is the summarized financial information regarding the associated entities: 

 Assets  Liabilities  Equity 
 Profit and 

Loss 
 Assets  Liabilities  Equity 

 Profit and 

Loss 

Associates

Bimbo de Colombia S.A. -                     -                     -                     -                     870.673    450.907    419.766    (50.039)      

Estrella Andina S.A.S. -                     -                     -                     -                     158.096    87.054       71.042       884               

Wellness Food Company S.A.S. 538               388               150               91                  881               640               241               (155)             

2025 2024

 
Table 11 
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Note 10. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE  

Grupo Nutresa classifies portfolio investments that are not held for trading, as equity investments measured at fair value, through “other 
comprehensive income”. 

The results for the period include income from dividends on said instruments, and are recognized, by Nutresa, on the date that the right to 
receive future payments is established, which is the date of declaration of dividends by the issuing Company. The “other comprehensive income” 
includes changes in the fair value of these financial instruments. 

The breakdown of financial instruments, is as follows: 

Book value  Participation 2025 2024

Sura SAC⁽*⁾ 0% (2024 - 100%) -                            78.763         

Central Ganadera S. A. 17,962% 2.035                 2.035            

2.035             80.798        
Table 12 

⁽*⁾ In August 2025, Sura SAC was sold. Grupo Nutresa has not control over this investment; therefore, it is not considered a subsidiary. The 
resources delivered are managed by Sura SAC. 

 Opening 

balance 

 Loss on Fair 

Value 

Measureme

 Divestment 
 Final 

balance 

 Dividend 

Income 

 Opening 

balance 

 Profit on 

Fair Value 

Measureme

 Purchases 
 Final 

balance 

 Dividend 

Income 

Sura SAC 78.763          (2.568)            (76.195)                 -                        -                        48.090          14.727          15.946          78.763          -                        

Central Ganadera S. A. 2.035             -                        -                                2.035             296                  2.035             -                        -                        2.035             276                  

80.798        (2.568)         (76.195)             2.035          296             50.125        14.727        15.946        80.798        276             

 Accumulated to December 

20242025

 
Table 13 

As of December 31, 2025, and 2024, there are no receivables for dividends from financial instruments. 

Note 11. INCOME TAXES AND TAXES PAYABLE  

11.1 Applicable Norms 

The current tax provisions applicable to the Company establish a nominal income tax rate of 35% and an occasional tax of 15%. 

Likewise, as from 2023, a minimum tax rate of 15% will be in force, whose calculation considers a tax and an adjusted profit, being carried out 
on a consolidated basis for companies belonging to corporate groups. 

The basis for the tax treatment is the recognition of income and expenses accrued for accounting purposes, except for those expressly provided 
for in the regulations, such as: the time of realization for certain income, non-deductibility of the difference not realized, limitation of the 
deduction for employee, customer and supplier services, ceilings on annual depreciation rates. 

Otherwise, donations made to entities belonging to the special tax regime are not deductible, but it is allowed a tax discount of 25% on the 
value donated, which cannot exceed 25% of the income tax payable in the respective taxable year. 

The firmness of tax returns is generally 3 years, however, for companies’ subject to the transfer pricing regime, the firmness is 5 years and the 
returns that originate or offset tax losses will be firm in 12 years. Additionally, for the years 2025, the returns that present an increase in net 
income tax by a minimum percentage of 35% or 25% compared to the previous year, will be final in 6 months or 12 months, respectively. 

11.2 Tax assets and liabilities 

Tax assets are presented in the Statement of Financial Position, under "other current assets". The balance, includes: 

2025 2024

Income tax and complementaries -                              91                   

Other taxes 278                       61                   

Total current tax assets 278                 152             
Table 14 
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The current taxes payable balances include: 

2025 2024

Income tax and complementary 1.511                   -                       

Withholding taxes, payable 609                       3.246            

Other taxes 926                       1.093            

 Total 3.046              4.339          
Table 15 

The Company applies the laws with professional judgment, to determine and recognize the provision for current tax and deferred income, on its 
Separate Financial Statements. The final tax determination depends on the new regulatory requirements, the existence of sufficient taxable 
profit for the use of fiscal benefits, as the treatment of untaxed income, and special deductions, according to the current regulations and 
applicable, and the analysis of favorability probability of expert opinions.  

The Company recognizes liabilities, for anticipated tax audits, observed based on estimates, if correspondent to payment of additional 
taxes. When the final tax outcome of these situations is different, from the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences are charged to 
tax on current and deferred assets and liabilities, in the period in which this is determined. 

Based on the criteria and judgments in the determination and recognition of those taxes, as of December 31, 205 and 2024, no situations have 
been identified that generate tax uncertainty and that should be recognized in the accounting according to the framework defined by IFRIC 23. 

11.3 Income tax expenses 

Current income tax expenses and deferred tax are as follows: 

Note 2025 2024

Current income tax 5.969                     293                          

Total 5.969                293                   

Deferred income taxes (*) 11.4 (2.780)                    (4.770)                    

Total income tax expenses 3.189                (4.477)               

Accumulated to December

 
Table 16 

(*) The composition of the deferred income tax arises primarily from the recognition of investment. 

11.4 Deferred income tax 

2025 2024

Deferred tax assets

Investments 866                                            - 

Exchange differences 808                                            - 

Other assets 23                                               - 

Total deferred tax assets             1.697                    - 

Deferred tax liabilities

Investments -                                        2.393 

Other liabilities -                                             (23)

Total income tax liabilities                    -            2.370 

Net deferred tax (assets) liabilities (1.697)         2.370            
Table 17 

The movement of deferred tax, during the period, was as follows: 

                       2.025                  2.024 

 Opening balance, net liabilities 2.370                       487                   

 Deferred tax expenses, recognized in income for the period (2.780)                             (4.770)                    

  Deferred taxes associated with components of other comprehensive income ⁽*⁾ (1.287)                             6.653                     

 Others (1)                                       -                                

 Final balance, net (assets) liabilities (1.698)                      2.370                

Table 18 

(*) The income tax, relating to components of other comprehensive income, is determined by the participation in associates and joint ventures, 
accounted for by using the Equity Method, in the amount of $-388 (2024: $876) and for financial assets measured at fair value $-899 (2024: 
$5.777). 
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11.5 Effective tax rates 

The effective rate is significantly below the theoretical rate, mainly due to untaxed income. The income received by Grupo Nutresa corresponds 
to the recognition of the profits obtained by subsidiary companies and recognized in the Company’s separate financial statements using the 
equity method.  

Additionally, the Company has the limitation of some deductions that counteract the above effect, such as the financial movement tax, 
permanent provisions, costs and expenses of previous years, fines and penalties, among others. 

A tax to be added is not determined due to the effect of the minimum tax rate of 15% established in paragraph 6 of Article 240 of the National 
Tax Statute, since this calculation must be made considering the procedure established for companies whose financial statements are 
consolidated in Colombia, a calculation that is above said minimum rate. 

Below is reconciliation, of both the applicable tax rate and the effective tax rates: 

 Notes Value % Value %

 Accounting profit, before income taxes  1.246.467 745.965  

Applicable tax rate expenses 436.264      35,00% 261.088   35,00%

 Untaxed portfolio dividends (36)                 0,00% -                    0,00%

 Untaxed income from the Equity Method (433.556)    -34,78% (268.767) -36,03%

 Other tax impact 517                0,04% 3.202         0,43%

 Total income tax expenses  11.3 3.189         0,26% (4.477)     -0,60%

 Accumulated to December 

2025 2024

 
Table 19 

Note 12. TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

The balances of trade and other accounts payable, are as follows: 

2025 2024

Cost and expenses payable ⁽*⁾ 34.857                                604 

Dividends payable 14.743                         14.880 

Payroll deductions and withholdings 168                                       368 

Loans and accounts payable to related parties -                                                 23 

Total 49.768         15.875          
Table 20 

⁽*⁾Mainly refers to consulting services. 

Note 13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Employee benefits, correspond to all considerations, arising from formal plans or agreements, legal requirements, granted by the Company, in 
exchange for services rendered by employees, or for severance indemnities. Benefits include all remuneration, realized directly to employees, 
or their beneficiaries or dependents of employees, (spouse, children and others), and/or third parties, whose settlement can be made through 
cash payments, and/or supply of goods and services (non-monetary profit). 

The balance of liabilities for employee benefits as of December 31 is as follows: 

Notes 2025 2024

Short-term benefits 1.114          2.794        

Post-Employment benefits 10               16              

Defined contribution plans 10                    16                  

Other long-term benefits 13.1 2.520          3.998        

Total liabilities for employee benefits 3.644          6.808        

Current portion 3.384          4.521        

Non-current portion 260             2.287        
 

Table 21 

13.1 Long-term benefits 

The long-term benefits include mainly seniority premiums and variable remuneration systems. 
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Seniority premiums is paid to the employee for every five years of service. The liability is recognized gradually, as the employee renders the 
services, that will make it creditor. Its measurement is realized annually, through the use of actuarial techniques. Current gains and losses, 
arising from experience, and changes in actuarial assumptions, are charged or credited to income for the period in which they arise. 

The Company does not have specific assets to support the long-term benefits. The liability from long-term benefits, is determined separately 
for each plan, using the actuarial valuation method of the projected credit unit, using actuarial assumptions, as of the date of the reporting 
period. The current service cost, past service cost, interest cost, actuarial gains and losses, as well as, any liquidation or reduction of the plan is 
recognized in the profit and loss. 

The following is the reconciliation of movements of other long-term employee benefits: 

2025 2024

 Present value of obligations at January 1 3.998        4.749        

(+) Cost of services 899               1.654           

(+/-) Interest expenses 244               281               

(+/-) Actuarial losses and/or gains (2.261)         (713)              

(-) Payments (348)              (1.973)         

(+/-) Others (12)                 -                

 Present value of obligations at December 31 2.520        3.998        
 

Table 22 

13.2 Expenses for employee benefits 

Amounts recognized as expenses for employee benefits, are as follows: 

2025 2024

Short-term benefits 38.012                  11.266                  

Post-Employment benefits 191                       271                        

   Defined contribution plans 191                               271                                

Other long-term benefits (1.323)                   893                        

 Sub Total 36.880                  12.430                  

Reimbursement for contracts of mandate ⁽*⁾ (37.093)                (13.093)                 

Recuperation 213                               663                        

Total -                            -                             

Accumulated to December

 
Table 23 

(*) According with the mandated agreement, Grupo Nutresa S.A. transfers to the subsidiary companies, the cost for employee benefits,     
corresponding to the corporate services provided to each of them. 

13.3 Actuarial Assumptions 

The main actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial measurement of the defined and long-term plans are: 

2025 2024

Discount rates 11,70% 10,40%

Salary increase rates 5,50% 6,00%

Employee turn-over rates 1,00% 1,00%  
Table 24 

According to the guidelines prescribed by the current regulation, the rate of high-quality corporate bonds, whose maturity is in accordance with 

the established benefits, is used for discount purposes. However, the Colombian market does not have sufficient liquidity and depth in these 

types of bonds. Grupo Nutresa establishes its hypothesis of the discount rate, based on the assumptions of the performance of the sovereign 

debt bonds, of the committed country, denominated in percentages, according to the terms of the obligation. The rates of the real yield curve 

are obtained from the information published daily, by the market. 

The table used is the mortality rate, by sex. This table is issued by the Financial Superintendence, through Resolution 1555 of 2010 for Colombia.  

The salary increase rates were determined based on historical performance, the projections of inflation, and consumer price indexes. 

The turnover rate of employees is estimated, based on historical data of the Company. 

13.4 Sensitivity analysis 

A quantitative analysis of sensitivity to a change in a significant key assumption, as of December 31st, 2025, would generate the following impact 
on the obligation for other long-term benefits, as well as, senior premium: 
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 Seniority Premiums

Discount rate + 1% (8)                                                         

Discount rate -1% 9                                                           

Salary increase rate + 1% 10                                                        

Salary increase rate -1% (9)                                                         
 

Table 25 

The methods and assumptions used to prepare sensitivity analyzes of the present value of the obligations were the same method, as for the 
actuarial calculation, at December 31st, 2024: Projected Credit Unit. Sensitivity has no limitations, nor changes in the methods and assumptions 
used to prepare the analysis of the current period. 

Note 14. EQUITY 

14.1 Issued share capital 

As of December 31, 2025, and 2024, the balance of capital of the Parent Company was $2.301, representing a total of 455.410.119 shares 
outstanding as of December 31, 2025 and 457.755.869 shares outstanding as of December 31, 2024, fully paid and subscribed shares. There 
were no changes to the make-up of the capital, during neither the period nor the comparative period. 

About share issues made in previous periods, there is a capital issue premium of $117.170. 

The shares of the company are listed on the Stock Exchange of Colombia to December 31st, 2025, and its value was $282.000, per share (2024: 
$79.000). 

The corporate structure of the company, as of December 31, is as follows: 

Investor Group
 Number 

of shares 
 % Participation 

 Number 

of shares 
 % Participation 

JGDB Holding S.A.S 200.186.073 44,0% 200.186.073 43,7%

Nugil S.A.S 147.937.265 32,5% 159.381.162 34,8%

Graystone Holding S.A. 56.692.661 12,4% 56.692.661 12,4%

Campbelltown Assets S.A. 13.713.476 3,0% 13.732.676 3,0%

IHC Capital Holding L.L.C. 11.215.019 2,5% 11.215.019 2,5%

Corporación Financiera GBB Sudameris S.A. 5.357.934 1,2% 5.519.434           1,2%

Inversiones GNB Comunicaciones S.A.S. 4.879.550 1,1% 4.941.050           1,1%

GNB Holding S.A.S. 3.210.692 0,7% 3.272.192           0,7%

Other investors 12.217.449 2,7% 2.815.602 0,6%

 Total outstanding shares 455.410.119    100,0% 457.755.869    100,0%

2025 2024

 
Table 26 

According to the register of shareholders, at December 31st, 2025, there are 9.100 shareholders (2024: 8.299). 

14.2 Reserves and retained earnings 

Of the accounts that make up the equity, reserves at December 31st of 2025 and 2024 are as follows: 

2025 2024

Legal reserves 3.787                                            3.787 

Non-distributable occasional reserves 1.692.594                       1.692.594 

Other reserves for the Shares Buyback 4.167.376                       3.721.881 

Total Reserves 5.863.757        5.418.262        

Retained earnings (1.284)                                     (10.720)

Total 5.862.473        5.407.542        

Table 27 

Legal reserves:  In accordance with Colombian Commercial Law, 10% of the net income each year should be appropriated as a legal reserve, 
until the balance is equivalent to at least 50% of the subscribed capital. The reserve is not distributable before the liquidation of the Company, 
but must be used to absorb losses. The excess over the minimum required by law is freely available to the Shareholders. 

Occasional non-distributed reserves: corresponds to the voluntary reserve, approved by the Shareholder’s Assembly at a Meeting on March 
18, 2016, in reference to accumulated profits, generated in the process of First-time Adoption of IFRS.  

Other reserves: corresponds to voluntary reserves, substantially freely available by the Shareholders' Meeting. 
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Other reserves for the share’s buyback: At the Shareholders' Meeting of Grupo Nutresa S.A. held on March 17, 2025, the share buyback 
program for the remainder of 2025 was approved, whereby the Company could acquire up to 4.580.000 shares at a price per share of $130.000 
(Colombian pesos).  

As of December 31, 2025, 2.345.750 of the Group's shares were acquired for $304.948; the balance of this reserve in 2025 is $1.992.072 (2024: 
$247.964).  

At the Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting on December 19, 2025, a share buyback project for up to 10.000.000 shares at a price of $300.000 
pesos per share was approved. For this purpose, it was authorized to transfer $2.708.845 from the retained earnings reserve at the disposal of 
the Shareholders' Meeting to the share buyback reserve. Additionally, the Board of Directors was authorized to allocate up to $3 billion to 
formulate one or more share buyback offers during 2026, 2027, and 2028, charged against the share buyback reserve, provided that the shares 
intended for acquisition are fully paid-up and comply with applicable regulations on stock market trading. 

Retained earnings: Grupo Nutresa’s General Shareholders’ Meeting, in its ordinary meeting on March 17, 2025, did not declare dividends. 
Instead, it resolved that the total net income from the separate financial statements of $347.000 be transferred to the 'Share buyback reserve' 
and $403.442 to the 'Occasional reserve at the disposal of the Shareholders' Meeting.' 

14.3 Distribution of dividends 

The General Shareholders' Meeting of Grupo Nutresa S.A., in its ordinary meeting held on March 17, 2025, did not declare dividends. 

The General Assembly of Shareholders of Grupo Nutresa S.A., at its ordinary meeting of March 21, 2024 did not declare ordinary dividends for 
the period between April 2024 and March 2025. 

The Extraordinary Shareholder’s Meeting of Grupo Nutresa S.A, held on August 28, 2024, declared and extraordinary dividend per share of 
1.135,98 pesos on 457.755.869 outstanding shares of the company, paid on September 3, 2024, amounting to a total of $520.002, considering 
that any trades executed between the ex-dividend date and the (3) three preceding trading days will not include the right to receive the 
corresponding dividends. 

As of December 31st, 2024, dividends payable is up to $137 (2024: $672.932). 

Accounts payable as of December 31st, 2025 for $49.769 (2024: $15.875) mainly include dividends payable for $14.743 (2024: $14.880) for this 
concept. 

Appropriations authorized by the General Assembly of Shareholders are recorded as reserves, charged to the results of the year for compliance 
with legal provisions or to cover expansion plans or financing needs. The Company takes the profits for the year to retained earnings and these 
to reserves. The appropriation value is $750.442 (2024: $720.588). 

(*) In Colombian Pesos.  

Shares Buyback 

During the General Meeting of Shareholders of Grupo Nutresa S. A. in 2025, the shares buyback project was approved for the remainder of the 
year 2025, where the Company may acquire up to 4.580.000 shares, at a price per share of $130.000 (Colombian pesos). 

As of December 31, 2025, where 2.345.750 shares of the Group were acquired for $304.947. 

The number of outstanding shares is presented below: 

 # Shares 

outstanding 

initial balance 

Shares buyback 

to December

# Shares 

outstanding final 

balance

457.755.869         2.345.750               455.410.119         
 

 Table 28 

 

Note 15. INCOME FROM SALE OF INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 

Corresponds to the profit on the sale of Bimbo de Colombia S.A. and Estrella Andina S.A.S. in May for $180.344 (2024 sale of Internacional 
Ejecutiva de Aviación S.A.S. $3.521). 
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Note 16. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, ACCUMULATED 

Below is a breakdown of each of the components of accumulated other comprehensive results, in the Separate Financial Statements: 
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Balance at January 1st, 2025              -         12.261         721           982.571       995.553 

Losses/gains from new measurements                   -             (2.568)     (1.370)        (1.149.861)  (1.153.799)

Income tax associated                    -                   899            388                                -           1.287 

Realization of the OCI to accumulated profits                   -             (9.436)            262                                -          (9.174)

Balance at December 31st, 2025              -           1.156             1         (167.290)     (166.133)  
Table 29 
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Balance at January 1st, 2024  (10.723)           3.311       (905)           554.456       546.139 

Losses/gains from new measurements                 -              14.727        3.588               428.115       446.430 

Income tax associated                  -               (5.777)          (876)                              -            (6.653)

Realization of the OCI to accumulated profits     10.723                        -       (1.086)                              -             9.637 

Balance at December 31st, 2024            -           12.261         721           982.571       995.553  
Table 30 

During the period, no reclassification of gains/losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income to profit and loss, was realized. 

16.1 (Losses) gains on re-measurement of defined benefit plans 

The component of new measurements of defined benefit plans represents the accumulative value of the actuarial gains and losses, primarily 
from” Other defined employee benefits”.  The net value of the new measurements is transferred to retained earnings and not reclassified to the 
Income Statement. 

16.2 Valuation of financial instruments - Equity investments measured at fair value through equity 

The component of other comprehensive income from equity investments measured at fair value through profit and loss represents the 
accumulated value of the gains or losses valuation to fair value minus the values transferred to retained earnings when these investments are 
sold.  Changes of fair value are not reclassified to the Income Statement. 

16.3 Investments in associates - Interest in other comprehensive income, accumulated 

The component of other comprehensive income from investments in associates and joint ventures, represents the accumulated value of gains 
or losses, from the participation in other comprehensive income of the investee. These accumulated profits may be transferred to profit or loss 
for the period in the cases provided by accounting standards. 

See Note 9, for detailed information on investments in associates. 

16.4 Subsidiaries – Interest in other comprehensive income, accumulated 

The component of other comprehensive income of investments of subsidiaries measured to the Equity Method, through profit or loss, 
represents the accumulated value of gains or losses of valuation from the Equity Method, minus the values transferred to retained earnings, 
when these investments have been sold.  Changes in fair value can be reclassified to profit and loss for the period. 

See Note 8, for more detailed information, regarding investments in subsidiaries and the application of the Equity Method of the other 
comprehensive income. 
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Note 17. EXPENDITURE BY NATURE 

Below is a detailed breakdown of expenditures by nature, for the period: 

2025 2024

Other services ⁽*⁾ 12.074                  135                          

Other expenses 416                          179                          

Taxes other than income tax 9.155                     5.521                     

Insurance 106                          132                          

 Total 21.751              5.967                

Accumulated to December

 
Table 31 

(*) Other services include transportation, food, software, and technology services. 

Grupo Nutresa S.A. operates under the modality of commercial offer of services of mandate without representation, offering shared services to 
the other companies of the Group, for integral management. Under this contract, the expenses, associated with the services provided to each 
of them, are transferred to the subsidiary companies. 

Note 18. OTHER OPERATING INCOME, NET 

Other net operating income corresponds to recoveries of costs and expenses. 

Note 19. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The amount of basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to holders of ordinary equity of the Parent, 
by the weighted average number of ordinary outstanding shares during the year.  

Below is the information about earnings and number of shares used in the computations of basic earnings per share: 

2025 2024

Net income attributable to holders of ordinary equity of the Parent 1.243.278                                   750.442 

Outstanding shares 456.687.515                   457.755.869 

Earnings per share attributable to controlling interest 2.722,38             1.639,39             

Table 32 

There are no equity instruments with potential dilutive impact on earnings per share. 

In accordance with current corporate regulations in Colombia, the distribution and payment of dividends to the Shareholders of the Parent 
Company is not realized on Separate Financial Statements, but on the Separate Financial Statements of Grupo Nutresa S.A. 

Note 20. EXCHANGE RATE VARIATION IMPACT 

The differences in exchange rates of assets and liabilities, recognized in profit and loss, are as follows: 

2025 2024

Realized                      969                      160 

Unrealized                      658                          (1)

Operating exchange differences             1.627                159 

Non-operating exchange differences               (9.178)                            6 

 Total income from exchange differences            (7.551)                165 

Accumulated to December

 
Table 33 

The operating exchange difference corresponds to suppliers $1.627 (2024: $159). 

The non-operating exchange difference corresponds to cash and banks $-8.012 (2024: $6) financial obligations $1.140 and other accounts 
receivable $-2.306. 
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Note 21. DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTIES 

The following table represents the values of transactions between related parties at year-end: 

Company
Receivables 

Balance 

Payables 

Balance

Purchases of 

goods and 

services

Sales of goods 

and services

Purchase of 

investments 

and/or 

capitalizations

Dividends 

income
Dividends paid

Interests 

income

Interests 

expenses

Subsidiaries

AbiMar Foods Inc. -                  -              -                       -                       329.452           -                 -                       -                       -                       

Alimentos Cárnicos S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       127.910     -                       -                       -                       

Atlantic FS S. A. S. 2.045            -              -                       -                       70.419              -                 -                       -                       -                       

Comercial Nutresa S. A. S -                  -              -                       -                       -                       64.001        -                       -                       -                       

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       150.001     -                       -                       -                       

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates del Perú S. A.  -                  -              -                       -                       -                       1                     -                       -                       -                       

Gestión Cargo Zona Franca S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       29.878        -                       -                       -                       

Helados Bon S. A. -                  -              -                       -                       108.987           -                 -                       -                       -                       

Industria Colombiana de Café S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       18.274        -                       -                       -                       

Industria de Alimentos Zenú S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       19.020        -                       -                       -                       

Industrias Aliadas S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       15.358        -                       -                       -                       

Inversionista Alcora S. A. -                  -              -                       -                       85.480              -                 -                       -                       -                       

IRCC S. A. S. - Industria de Restaurantes Casuales S. A. S. 4.110            -              9                           -                       -                       -                 -                       -                       -                       

La Recetta Soluciones Gastronomicas Integradas S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       788                     -                 -                       -                       -                       

Meals Mercadeo de Alimentos de Colombia S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       14.077        -                       -                       -                       

Productos Naturela S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       102               -                       -                       -                       

Novaventa S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       69.546        -                       -                       -                       

Productos Alimenticios Doria S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       25.601        -                       -                       -                       

Servicios Nutresa S. A. S. 54.558         -              -                       -                       -                       -                 -                       -                       17                        

Setas Colombianas S. A. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       5.397           -                       -                       -                       

Total subsidiaries 60.713          -                  9                        -                        595.126            533.769       -                        -                        17                      

Other related parties

GNB sudameris Bank S. A. -                  -              60                        -                       -                       -                 -                       1.165                 -                       

Servivalores GNB Sudameris S. A. -                  -              545                     -                       -                       -                 -                       10                        -                       

Servitrust GNB -                  -              -                       -                       -                       -                 -                       2                           -                       

Lulo Bank S. A. -                  -              36.000              12.000              -                       -                 -                       406                     -                       

Members, Board of Directors -                  -              260                     -                       -                       -                 -                       -                       -                       

2025

 
Table 34 

Company
Receivables 

Balance 

Payables 

Balance

Purchases of 

goods and 

services

Sales of goods 

and services

Purchase of 

investments 

and/or 

capitalizations

Dividends 

income
Dividends paid

Interests 

income

Interests 

expenses

Subsidiaries

Alimentos Cárnicos S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       49.742        -                       -                       -                       

Comercial Nutresa S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       113.073     -                       -                       -                       

Compañía de Galletas Noel S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       16.779        -                       -                       -                       

Gestión Cargo Zona Franca S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       99.169        -                       -                       -                       

Industria Colombiana de Café S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       79.124        -                       -                       -                       

IRCC S. A. S. - Industria de Restaurantes Casuales S. A. S. 103                23                4                           -                       -                       -                 -                       -                       -                       

Meals Mercadeo de Alimentos de Colombia S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       4.995           -                       -                       -                       

Molinos Santa Marta S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       47.597        -                       -                       -                       

C.I. Nutrading S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       1.600                 -                 -                       -                       -                       

Tropical Coffee Company S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       900               -                       -                       -                       

Productos Naturela S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       131               -                       -                       -                       

Novaventa S. A. S -                  -              -                       -                       -                       167.206     -                       -                       -                       

Pastas Comarrico S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       3.200           -                       -                       -                       

Productos Alimenticios Doria S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       61.428        -                       -                       -                       

Servicios Nutresa S. A. S. 21.430         -              -                       -                       -                       -                 -                       -                       38                        

Setas Colombianas S. A. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       6.712           -                       -                       -                       

Industria de Alimentos Zenú S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       30.178        -                       -                       -                       

Industrias Aliadas S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       26.265        -                       -                       -                       

Total subsidiaries 21.533          23               4                        -                        1.600                706.499       -                        -                        38                      

Associates and joint ventures -                  

Internacional Ejecutiva de Aviación S. A. S. -                  -              13                        -                       -                       -                 -                       -                       -                       

Entities with significant influence over the entity

Jgdb Holding S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       -                 226.998           -                       -                       

 Graystone Holdings S. A. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       -                 50.877              -                       -                       

Nugil S. A. S. -                  -              -                       -                       -                       -                 232.296           -                       -                       

Other related parties

Members, Board of Directors -              -           403                -                  -                  -             -                  -                  -                  

2024

 
Table 35 

Purchases and sales were executed in equivalent conditions than those of the market. Outstanding balances are expected to be settled under 
normal conditions; these balances have not been granted, nor received guarantees.  No expense has been recognized in the current or prior 
periods, regarding uncollectable debts or doubtful accounts related amounts owed by related parties. 

During the period payments in the amount of $1.025 (2024: $8.899) for key personne were made. 
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Note 22. EVENTS AT THE END OF THE QUARTER AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On January 7, 2026, Grupo Nutresa reported the repurchase of 1.949.999 shares for a total amount of $585.000; consequently, the Company's 
total number of outstanding shares decreased from 455.410.119 to 453.460.120 ordinary shares.  

On January 16, 2026, Grupo Nutresa reported the repurchase of 1.382.999 shares for a total amount of $414.900; consequently, the Company's 
total number of outstanding shares decreased from 453.460.120 to 452.077.121 ordinary shares.  

On February 16, 2026, Grupo Nutresa's Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting authorized the issuance and placement of 19.000.000 shares with 
preferential dividends and without voting rights (“Preferential Shares”) through a private offering. The price of each of the  Preferential Shares 
offered will be $300.000. 

The present Separate financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Grupo Nutresa Board of Directors on February 19, 2025. 
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Statutory Auditor’s report on compliance by the Entity’s Management with 

statutory regulations and with orders and instructions of the General 

Shareholders’ Meeting, on the existence of appropriate internal control and 

conservation and custody measures of the Entity’s assets or those of third 

parties in its possession, and on the effectiveness of controls over the financial 

reporting process 

(Free translation from the Original in Spanish) 

 

To the Shareholders of Grupo Nutresa S. A. 

Description of Main Matter  

In performing my duties as Statutory Auditor of Grupo Nutresa S .A. and in accordance with Article 209 (1) 

and (3) of the Colombian Commercial Code and Annex 1 of Chapter I of Title V of Part III of the Basic Legal 

Circular issued by the Colombian Superintendency of Finance, I am required to report to the General 

Shareholders’ Meeting on whether during the year ended December 31, 2025, appropriate internal control 

and conservation and custody measures of the Entity’s assets or those of third parties in its possession 

were in place, and on compliance by the Entity’s Management with statutory regulations and the orders and 

instructions of the General Shareholders’ Meeting. 

The criteria considered for assessing the matter mentioned in the preceding paragraph includes: a) the 

Entity’s bylaws, the minutes of the General Shareholders’ Meeting, and the legal and regulatory provisions 

under my duties as Statutory Auditor; and b) the components of the internal control system that the Entity’s 

Management and those charged with governance consider necessary for the appropriate and timely 

preparation of its financial information. 



(Free translation from the Original in Spanish) 

2 

Management’s Responsibility 

The Entity’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control that 

enables safeguarding its assets or those of third parties in its possession and appropriately complying with 

the Entity’s bylaws and the decisions of the General Shareholders’ Meeting and the Board of Directors. 

To fulfill these responsibilities, Management is required to apply judgement in assessing the expected 

benefits and related costs of control procedures seeking to provide Management with reasonable, but not 

absolute, assurance about whether assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or 

disposition, that the Entity’s operations are properly conducted and recorded, and to enable the preparation 

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and in 

accordance with Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards accepted in Colombia. 

Statutory Auditor’s Responsibility  

My responsibility as statutory auditor is to perform an assurance work to express a conclusion, based on 

the procedures carried out and the evidence obtained, on whether the acts of the Entity’s Management 

conform to the bylaws and the orders and instructions of the General Shareholders’ Meeting, on whether 

appropriate internal control measures are established by the Entity’s Management to safeguard its assets 

or those of third parties in its possession, and on the effectiveness of controls over the financial reporting 

process. 

I performed my duties in conformity with assurance standards on financial reporting accepted in Colombia. 

Those standards require that I comply with independence and ethical requirements established in Decree 

2420 of 2015, which are founded on the principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due 

care, confidentiality and professional behavior and that I plan and perform procedures which I consider it 

necessary in order to obtain assurance on the compliance by the Entity’s Management with the bylaws and 

the orders and instructions of General Shareholders’ Meeting, and on whether appropriate internal control 

and conservation and custody measures of the Entity’s assets and those of third parties in its possession 

were in place as of December 31, 2025, and for the year then ended, in all material respects of 

assessment, and in conformity with the description of the criteria of the main matter above. 

The accounting firm, to which I belong and from which I was appointed as the Entity’s statutory auditor, 

applies the International Quality Control Standard No. 1 and, consequently, maintains a comprehensive 



(Free translation from the Original in Spanish) 
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quality control system including documented policies and procedures on compliance with ethical 

requirements, professional standards, and applicable legal and regulatory requirements. 

Assurance procedures performed  

The audit provisions mentioned above require that I plan and perform assurance procedures to obtain 

reasonable assurance that the internal controls implemented by the Entity are designed and operate 

effectively. The selected assurance procedures depend on the statutory auditor’s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements whether due to fraud or error, 

and that appropriate efficiency and efficacy of the Entity’s transactions is not achieved. The procedures 

performed included selective tests of the design and effective operation of controls that I considered 

necessary in the circumstances to provide reasonable assurance that the control objectives determined by 

the Entity’s Management are appropriate. 

The assurance procedures performed were as follows: 

• Review of the Entity’s bylaws, minutes of the General Shareholders’ Meeting, and other supervisory 

bodies, in order to verify appropriate compliance by the Entity’s Management with such bylaws, and the 

decisions made by the General Shareholders’ Meeting. 

• Inquiries of Management on changes or amendment projects to the Entity’s bylaws during the covered 

period and validation of its implementation. 

• Understanding and evaluation of the internal control components on the Entity’s financial reporting, such 

as control environment, risk assessment, information and communication, monitoring of controls, and 

control activities. 

• Understanding how the Entity has responded to emerging risk of information systems. 

• Understanding and evaluation of the design of relevant control activities over the financial reporting 

process and their validation to establish that these were implemented by the Entity and operate 

effectively. 

I believe that the audit evidence that I obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the 

conclusion that I express below.



(Free translation from the Original in Spanish) 

 

PwC Contadores y Auditores S.A.S.,  

Calle 7 Sur No. 42-70, Torre 2, Piso 11, Edificio Forum, 

Medellín, Colombia.  Tel: (60-4) 6040606 www.pwc.com/co 

Inherent limitations 

Due to its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Likewise, it is possible that the results of my procedures may 

differ or change in condition during the assessed period, as my report is based on selective tests performed 

during that period. Additionally, the projections of any assessment of the effectiveness of internal control to 

future periods are subject to the risk that controls become inappropriate due to changes in conditions or 

that the degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate. 

Conclusion 

Based on the evidence obtained from the work performed and described above, and subject to the inherent 

limitations stated, I conclude that, during the year ended December 31, 2025, the acts of the Entity’s 

Management conformed to the bylaws and to the orders and instructions of the General Shareholders’ 

Meeting, appropriate internal control and conservation and custody measures of the Entity’s assets or those 

of third parties in its possession are in place, and controls over financial reporting operated effectively. 

This report is issued to the Shareholders of Grupo Nutresa S. A. to comply with the requirements set forth 

in Article 209(1) and (3) of the Colombian Commercial Code and should not be used for any other purpose. 

(Original in Spanish duly signed by:) 

Carlos A. Molina B.   

Statutory Auditor 

Colombian CPA Registration No. 129511-T  

Appointed by PwC Contadores y Auditores S. A. S. 

February 19, 2026 


